
NOTICE 
 

OF 
 

MEETING 

 

WINDSOR TOWN FORUM 
 

will meet on 

 
WEDNESDAY, 27TH JANUARY, 2021 

 
At 6.15 pm 

 
in the 

 
VIRTUAL MEETING - ONLINE ACCESS, RBWM YOUTUBE 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR TOWN FORUM 

 
COUNCILLORS JOHN BOWDEN (CHAIRMAN), SAMANTHA RAYNER (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), CHRISTINE BATESON, DAVID CANNON, JON DAVEY, KAREN DAVIES, 
NEIL KNOWLES, HELEN PRICE, SHAMSUL SHELIM, AMY TISI AND DAVID HILTON  
 
COUNCILLORS  
 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
COUNCILLORS CAROLE DA COSTA, GARY MUIR, JULIAN SHARPE, 
WISDOM DA COSTA, MAUREEN HUNT, LYNNE JONES, SAYONARA LUXTON, 
LEO WALTERS, DEL CAMPO, GURCH SINGH AND DAVID COPPINGER 
 

Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: 19.01.21 
 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator If you have any questions about this meeting, 
including any opportunity for public participation, please contact Fatima Rehman (Phone: 01628 796251 

fatima.rehman@rbwm.gov.uk)  

 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the 

virtual meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, 
you are giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have 
any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or Legal representative at the 
meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive apologies for absence. 

  

- 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any Declarations of Interest. 
  

3 - 4 
 

3.   MINUTES 
 
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 
  

5 - 16 
 

4.   WINDSOR NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 
 
To discuss the above item. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

5.   PARKING STRATEGY 
 
To receive the above item. 

  

To 
Follow 

 

6.   THAMES VALLEY POLICE UPDATE 
 
To receive the above item. 

  

17 - 18 
 

7.   COVID-19 UPDATE 
 
To receive a presentation on the latest available information regarding to 
Covid-19.  
  

Verbal 
Report 

 

8.   WINDSOR TOWN COUNCIL UPDATE 
 
To receive the above report. 

  

Verbal 
Report 

 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To consider the Forum’s work programme. 

  

19 - 20 
 

10.   DATES FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
All future meetings to be held on the following dates (at 6.15pm): 

 24 March 2021 

 26 May 2021 

  

- 
 

 



 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR TOWN FORUM 
 

WEDNESDAY, 25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
PRESENT: Councillors John Bowden (Chairman), Samantha Rayner (Vice-Chairman), 
Christine Bateson, David Cannon, Jon Davey, Karen Davies, Helen Price, 
Shamsul Shelim, Amy Tisi and David Hilton 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Gurch Singh and Councillor John Baldwin, Carrie 
Woods, Johnny Wales, Alice G, Claire Milne, Rev Matthew Scott, John Webb, John 
Bastow, Kim Dutton, Tom Wigley, Ed Wilson, Phil Collins and Jeffrey Pick, Kim 
Dutton, Lorraine Hart and Carrie Woods 
 
Officers: Paul Roach, David Scott, Fatima Rehman, Feliciano Cirimele and Danny 
Gomm 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Knowles and Sue Watts, representative of 
Chamber of Commerce. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 

 
MINUTES  
 
An addendum was to be put on the September 2020 minutes meeting to correctly 
inform that there was £6.5 million of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) money on 
the Imperial House, of which 15% could go locally. 
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 
September 2020 and 12 October 2020 be approved, subject to the following 
change in the former minutes: 
 

 To include, “Issues of discussing the WTC were raised”. 

The Chairman informed Members of progress on actions arising from the previous 
minutes: 
 

ACTION FROM LAST MEETING UPDATE 

Councillor Coppinger to update on 
the progress of Windsor 
Neighbourhood Plan (WNP) 
offline. 
 

A report (to agree to put the WNP to 
referendum and recommend the issue of a 
decision notice) was due to Cabinet in 
November 2020 and had been moved to 
December 2020. This was because two 
officers responsible for the report had moved 
on in the last 9 months and there were 
pressures on the Borough Local Plan 
examination. The WNP were informed of this. 

A written response to be given to 
Robert Peel and Members to 
confirm if the Local Government 

The response was sent to Robert Peel, 
circulated to Members offline and was to be 
added as an addendum to the minutes of 12 

5

Agenda Item 3



Act allowed an out of sync first 
election. 
 

October 2020.  

Councillor Knowles to invite 
Windsor Chamber of Commerce 
representative. 
 

Sue Watts was invited to the meeting and 
regrettably sent her apologies due to a very 
late change of circumstances. 
 

Councillor Knowles to update on 
the Army covenant in the next 
meeting. 
 

To be invited on January 2021 meeting, as 
the representatives were busy due to 
COVID-19 workload. 

 
Councillor Price said the waste collection item was not raised in the September 2020 
Forum but was discussed in the Maidenhead Town Forum. The Chairman said the 
matter had now been discussed in Communities Over & Scrutiny Panel and could be 
put forward by residents and Members. 
 
Councillor Price suggested an update from the Cycle Action Group second tranche 
group funding.  
 
Councillor Shelim suggested a timeframe for each item on the agenda to ensure all 
items were discussed and Councillors Price, Davies, Tisi, Cannon and Hilton 
supported this for future meetings. It was said that the Chairman should use his 
discretion to use time efficiently, and it was encouraged for officers to provide written 
reports to aid in placing timeframes for items and reduce the need to extended 
discussion on aspects that could be read in advance. 
 
FORUM PARTICIPATION & COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT  
 
Claire Milne, Co-Chairperson of the WNP, said the Forum was primarily central 
Windsor focussed and discussions took place between Councillors rather than the 
community. There was a need for greater opportunities for questions and 
transparency in decision-making, such as parking policies and Alexandra Gardens.  
 
John Bastow, Co-Chairperson of the WNP, endorsed Claire Milne’s points and asked 
what the purpose of the Forum was. Councillor Price reiterated the Constitution from 
Part 6D and said it would be useful to realign the Forum with the Constitution.  
 
Councillor Tisi said devolving decision-making and taking actions would be valuable 
rather than discussing reports. Councillor Cannon said it was difficult to delegate 
decision-making to residents an unelected body and required a representative group 
and greater attendance. He said matters raised in the meetings should be passed 
onto relevant lead members and officers. John Webb suggested this to be taken 
further to allow residents to make decisions rather than Councillors and the Chairman 
said the Constitution would need to be amended for this to occur. 
 
Councillor Davey said the Forum should be led by residents and suggested that the 
Members should contact Claire Milne and John Bastow to decide how to structure the 
meetings. Reverend Matthew Scott, Chair of Churches expressed the willingness of 
Churches Together to support and help facilitate the Forum.  
 
Ed Wilson said the lack of resident involvement was a perennial issue and the 
meetings were lengthy, whilst residents would prefer short and sharp meetings. John 

6



Webb said residents should be heard, uninterrupted, and felt the Forum could be 
contentious at times and the atmosphere was distasteful.  
 
Jeffrey Pick, Thames Valley Police Community Engagement & Resilience Officer, said 
over 30,000 people could be reached through the Thames Valley Alert and social 
platforms to promote the Forum. He requested for Members to inform him if they 
would be interested. Members confirmed their support for this option to be used. 
 
Councillor Price said it was important to encourage resident participation via residents 
and promote on the agenda that residents may request items. The Chairman said the 
Communications department would need to be contacted to increase publicity. 
 
THAMES VALLEY POLICE UPDATE  
 
Police Sergeant Phil Collins, sergeant for Ascot, Maidenhead West and Windsor West 
introduced the item. Councillor Price asked why theft of pedal cycles was low in 
central Windsor compared to last year and Phil Collins said it was due to the 
lockdown. Councillor Price asked why young people were increasingly carrying knives 
and Phil Collins said this was because young people who were involved in low level 
criminal activity carried a knife as protection, in case they were targeted by rival drug 
groups. Stabbing incidents that took place were not random.  
 
Councillor Price asked if there was a pattern in the thefts from motor vehicles and 
Jeffrey Pick said people were randomly checking car doors that were unlocked at 
night. In Ascot, car break-ins took place in cars with visible golf clubs. The Clear Car 
Campaign was set out to inform car owners who left their personal belongings on 
display. Tourists who left their luggage on display were a key concern in central 
Windsor.  
 
Councillor Price asked what happened to bikes that were recovered and unclaimed 
and Jeffrey Pick said pictures of the bikes were published. If they remained unclaimed, 
they were auctioned, and the money was invested in the Thames Valley Police (TVP) 
proceeds from crime funds. 
 
The Vice Chairman asked if Jeffrey Pick ran any surgeries on crime prevention during 
COVID-19 and the Forum was informed one surgery had taken place in both 
Maidenhead and Windsor during the Knife Crime Week. The Winter Burglary 
Campaign was being promoted, including fake CCTV, shed alarms and video 
doorbells. Home security surveys were suspended due to COVID-19 restrictions but 
were due to resume as surveys could be undertaken outdoors. Community 
Speedwatch was also suspended and resultantly had an impact on crime prevention.  
 
Councillor Hilton said the Neighbourhood Action Group that he Chaired was restarting 
via Zoom and was joined by the students from Charters School to gain a new 
perspective. Councillor Hilton asked about the burglary rate in Windsor, which was low 
in his ward and Phil Collins said two burglars had been arrested on the day of the 
Forum meeting, however information could not be shared due to confidentiality 
reasons and ongoing investigations. Information about burglaries was limited as 
names could not be released until the suspect was convicted, and evidence needed to 
be gathered before presenting to the court. Jeffrey Pick said residents were 
encouraged through County Lines to pass on intelligence to support the police in 
arrests, such as doorbell and CCTV footage or inform of suspicious activities.  
 

7



Councillor Cannon asked if action was being taken on the illegal use of e-scooters or 
was there information sharing only. Phil Collins said recent guidance stated that hired 
e-scooters were legal to be used on roads in the borough, but not private e-scooters, 
which were only allowed on private land. Under 165A, e-scooters could be seized if 
there was not a valid insurance, a license and a helmet. The law for private and hired 
e-scooters were different and it was hard to distinguish.  
 
Ed Wilson requested for more police and community warden presence in Lodge Way 
and Keeler Close, as the activity there was concerning. Phil Collins said a house 
closure order was issued in the areas for 3 months and TVP was aware of the issues 
and would act upon it. Ed Wilson asked for an item on how well TVP work with 
Community Wardens to be added on the agenda. Phil Collins and Jeffrey Pick said 
Community Wardens were integral to TVP and shared information.  
 
John Webb asked if there was a commercial opportunity for businesses to set up a left 
luggage to a bike storage system to reduce theft and would it be supported by the 
Forum. Jeffrey Pick said this was a good idea and would have to be well publicised. It 
was important to deal with the issue sensitively as the impression that Windsor was a 
high theft area would not be appetising. Residents were being contacted via social 
media and alerts. However, tourists were harder to contact, as hotels do not want to 
give the impression that Windsor was dangerous. 
 
TOWN MANAGER UPDATE  
 
Paul Roach, Windsor Town Manager, said a new tiered system was created to 
support businesses on 5 November 2020. The first system had a £10,000 and 
£25,000 one-off payment to businesses under the business rates value of £51,000. 
The current system allowed businesses over the value of £51,000 to apply for up to 
£3,000 per 28 days. There was also a Local Authority Discretionary Grants Fund, 
which allowed the local authority to have control of the fund. The criteria were to be 
finalised the week following the meeting and the grant could be applied online rather 
than on paper for time efficiency. Other updates included: 
 

 A single portal to promote local businesses was created and local businesses 
were encouraged to be directed to the website, https://myroyalborough.com/. 

 Free one-to-one support was to be given from the Berkshire Growth Hub 
(https://www.berkshirebusinesshub.co.uk/) that gave guidance on the 
government’s financial support scheme. 

 The Government Kickstart Scheme was launched in July 2020, which provided 
a 6-month placement for 16 to 24-year olds. 

 An apprenticeship scheme was being delivered through 
https://www.berkshireopportunities.co.uk/, with information on how employers 
could take advantage of this, as there was a significant increase in 
apprenticeship uptake.  

 So far, £234,000 was granted to 122 businesses across the borough, 82 places 
were awaiting assessment and 32 open applications were awaiting to be 
finalised.  

 Prior to the second lockdown, footfall was almost back to normal. In October 
2020, footfall in Windsor was 550,000, compared to 590,000 in October 2019. 

More shops were open in comparison to the first lockdown. Regarding businesses 
being open in the second lockdown that were not closed in the first, the Forum was 
informed that the businesses chose to remain closed, despite meeting the criteria to 

8

https://myroyalborough.com/
https://www.berkshirebusinesshub.co.uk/
https://www.berkshireopportunities.co.uk/


remain open in the first lockdown. Some concern was raised about certain businesses 
being opened, which were directed to the Trading Standards to investigate.  
 
Whilst pop-up stores and other opportunities were being explored, landlords and 
agents were looking for permanent full-time retailers. Windsor Yards representatives 
were invited to the Forum; however, they declined the offer as they were not in the 
position to discuss their business strategy and needed to discuss with partners and 
owners before discussing in a public Forum. Pop-up ideas were being pursued, to be 
opened before Christmas 2020.   
 
The Christmas lights were turned on 21 November 2020 in the safest way possible, 
and a competition was launched to encourage the community to decorate their home 
and share their pictures using the hashtag #LightUpMyRBWM. The competition was 
between 21 November 2020 and 6 December 2020, with a prize of £250. As events 
and activities were cancelled, an online Christmas programme was to be launched 
that shared key things that were still open during COVID-19. 
Paul Roach explained that the Chambers of Commerce had not ceased to exist but 
remained in name only. The activity previously undertaken by the Chambers of 
Commerce was now executed by the Windsor and Eton Town Partnership and Sue 
Watts attended meetings as a representative of the body.  
 
Councillor Davey asked what footfall measured, as traditionally it determined the 
success of the town by the number of people who entered the town. Paul Roach said 
other measures were also used to measure success, such as car parking figures and 
vacancy rates. There was a need for sales data, however not many businesses 
shared the data. Windsor was part of a pilot scheme during COVID-19 to monitor the 
bounce-back to pre-COVID-19 conditions by comparing data in January and June 
2020. There were positive results, and the data used included free information from 
Google Analytics and footfall. The government also provided data from four different 
sources, but it was costly.  
 
Councillor Davey asked if retailers could be informed of the e-petition to provide free 
parking in Windsor during the Christmas 2020 period. Paul Roach said the Council 
was reviewing the parking plans and said whilst it would be nice to have, it had to be 
balanced with the budget implications. 
The Vice Chairman said new shops had opened in Windsor, including Heidi and 
HotRocks. 
 
John Webb asked if business promotion was only available for bricks and mortar 
operations, and Paul Roach said support was available for all businesses across the 
borough.   
 
Ed Wilson said there was a litter pick at Bridgewater Terrace, Windsor, which looked 
neglected and asked if there were plans to upgrade the area. Paul Roach 
conversations had taken place with the horticultural team on a possible future project 
on upkeeping the small green spaces. 
 
Councillor Tisi said Councillor Davies came up with an idea to increase community 
participation in looking after local parks by having park user groups and West Windsor 
Councillors were in the process of setting this up. This could be a model to be adopted 
by local group of residents. 
 
COVID-19 UPDATE  

9



 
David Scott, Head of Communities, said work was being done to minimise the spread 
and transmission of COVID-19. Work was based on embedding the immediate 
emergency response and supporting businesses, such as grants. Strong relationships 
were built with high risk settlings where people were still meeting, such as schools and 
care homes. The local public health team, the Communications team and providers 
such as Optalis were working with stakeholders to spread the government messaging 
to reduce the risk of infection.  
 
Areas of improvement included prioritising the data so that the strategy could be 
delivered, transmission could be reduced, and the economy and people could be 
protected. Data was used to prioritise the delivery of the strategy to reduce 
transmission, protect people and the economy.  
 
The next phase of support was based on including epidemiological and local data, 
working with technical advice from Public Health England, enforcement activity from 
the TVP and communications from the Communications team and community 
influencers. Trusted information was shared through powerful local influencers, 
particularly in the higher risk Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic community and the 
messaging was tailored to the community.  
 
Once the data was collected, hotspots of transmission would be identified, causes 
could be deduced and actions to reduce transmission could be deployed. Awareness 
of how their actions impacted the spread of COVID-19 would be raised, such as a 
recent communication with Head Boys and Girls in local schools. The young people 
said it was the first time they received information from what they considered was a 
reliable source and the conversation helped them dismantle the perception that young 
people did not have an impact on the spread of the infection.  
 
The new launch of the Berkshire public health website 
(https://www.berkshirepublichealth.co.uk/) was a very useful resource that shared the 
latest information and a COVID-19 dashboard updated on a daily basis. The weekly 
rate data reported at 20 November 2020 for the Borough was 144 per 100,000, which 
had dropped from the high point in 12 November of 198.8 per 100,000. There was an 
effort to coordinate information and ensure there was one view, such as the borough’s 
Health Protection Board, which included Director’s and Managing Director’s from 
Public Health, the borough, nursing and Clinical Commissioning Groups.  
 
The borough was due to find out the tier criteria at the time of the Forum and the key 
factors that determined the tier, these included: absolute infection rates, positivity 
rates and age profile, with the transmission moving up to the over 60s, who were a 
higher risk and added pressure on the health system. A higher proportion of the 
infection rates were not able to be attributed to a known cluster and the highest source 
of infection was from the home setting. 
 
Councillor Price said it was important for residents to look at a reputable source and 
rumour mongering was unhelpful. The Vice Chairman said that Test and Trace Local 
Contact Tracing Service was now available. Councillor Davey asked if contact was not 
possible via a contact number, would police and community wardens be utilised to 
contact residents.  
 
David Scott informed the Forum that the service was launched a week prior to the 
Forum meeting and was growing. Information was cascaded from the National service 

10

https://www.berkshirepublichealth.co.uk/


and if the follow-up information was unsuccessful in 72 hours, then the information 
would be sent to the council. There was a combination of follow-up actions such as 
ongoing welfare checks, home visits from community wardens and initial calls by 
colleagues. 
 
Councillor Singh said the messaging for the tier system was confusing and asked if 
there were translations to reach the vulnerable communities, and the Forum was 
informed that community influencers and BAME community leaders were contacted to 
translate the messaging. Councillor Singh asked if there was audio messaging 
recorded and the Forum was informed this had taken place, as well as information 
shared on Asian Star Radio and Councillors. 
 
AIR POLLUTION UPDATE  
 
Feliciano Cirmele, Environmental Protection Officer, informed Members of the item 
and said air quality (AQ) across the borough had significantly improved, with 2019 
results being below the national quality objective. Windsor had two Air Quality 
Management Areas (AQMA), Imperial Road/St Leonards Road junction and West 
Windsor. The results at the junction were below the objective for three consecutive 
years and was eligible for revocation. There were reducing trends of nitrogen dioxide 
(NO2) concentration, which was a national and regional trend. 
 
The Environment Protection team monitored NO2 in real time with a monitoring station 
and 15 diffusion tubes deployed that provide monthly concentration rates. There were 
two diffusion sites in Eton, Old Windsor and Datchet. The recorded concentrations had 
to be 10% below the national quality objective for three consecutive years. Provisional 
results of AQ during COVID-19 showed an expected reduction in concentrations 
compared to the same period in 2019 due to reduced travel due to COVID-19 and 
therefore reduced emissions.  
 
Changes that would improve AQ included the change to working from home more, 
and therefore reduction use of transport and therefore less emissions and the increase 
in sustainable and affordable hybrid and electrical vehicles. The borough’s scheme to 
provide on-street electrical vehicle charging points in residential areas was underway. 
A bid was successful to bring forward the cycling scheme, as cycling was a better 
alternative to public transport and cars.  
 
Thomas Wigley said he rejected the optimistic claims made about AQ, as the selection 
of data presented made it appear that there was an improvement recently. He asked 
where the quantified statistical analysis was to substantiate the claims. He listed the 
objectives for atmospheric pollutants. 
 
It was not apparent that the borough monitored any other atmospheric pollutants such 
as PM2.5 particulates, PM10 particulates, Ozone, Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons, 
Benzene, 1,3-Butadiene, Carbon Monoxide and Lead. Therefore, the real AQ in the 
borough was unknown. He said the AQ data reported for 2019 appeared to have been 
‘greenwashed’ with an unrealistically positive impression. 
 
He asked why 14 out of 43 Annual Mean NO2 concentration readings had been 
corrected, and why 6 readings that exceeded the objective of 40µg/m3 were corrected 
to less than the maximum limit of 40µg/m3. Of 30 Annual Mean readings between 
2009 and 2019, 27 exceeded the maximum limit of 40µg/m3 and were corrected to 
24µg/m3. Thomas Wigley said the Annual Mean values hid the maximum NO2 

11



concentrations recorded. The AQMAs was close to local schools that children 
travelled through and drivers on route to Legoland and Ascot. 
 
He asked for transparency in the AQ of the borough and what happened since his 
attendance last year for ‘No Idling’ signs to be erected. Thomas Wigley said there was 
a strong case for continuous monitoring at Imperial Road/St Leonards Road junction. 
The Chairman said Thomas Wigley’s comments to be sent to the environmental 
services to respond and action. 
 
Councillor Davies said she was pleased that the concentration of NO2 was declining 
but noticed the numbers were adjusted to account the distance to the nearest 
residential property. With the Climate Strategy, it was encouraged to cycle and walk 
after the lockdown restrictions. She said all WM03 site IDs in the report had high NO2 
Annual Mean concentrations, and whilst they had reduced over the last three years, it 
was still high. 
 
Councillors Davey and Price said the AQ was a concern for children walking to school. 
Councillor Davey said there was a need for a standardised measure of air quality in a 
quantified way. 
 
Councillor Price said the Borough Local Plan suggested that AQ would get worse 
before it got better in the coming years, and therefore the already high concentrations 
were a concern. She said the frequent breakdown of traffic lights near St Albert Pub 
that were no longer fit for purpose, which increased the problem, as pedestrians were 
unable to safely cross the road. 
 
(Richard Endacott joined the meeting.) 
 
Councillor Davey asked what the size of the grant for home charging point for electric 
cars and the Forum was informed this would be answered offline. 
 
ACTION: David Scott agreed to ask colleagues who were involved to inform 
Councillor Davey of the grant size for home charging point for electric cars. 
 
Ed Wilson asked for Councillors to propose solutions rather than describing problems. 
Councillor Tisi said there was a need to make roads safer for pedestrians and school 
children, such as traffic lights on dangerous junctions such as Mill Lane so pedestrians 
could cross the road safely. Drivers needed to be encouraged to use cars less and 
encourage parents to walk shorter distances to school and reduce the number of cars 
in narrow streets. She said there were many creative solutions on how to spend the 
active travel fund.  
 
Ed Wilson said there was no mention of the installation of on-street electrical vehicle 
charging points for the last 18 months. The Chairman said there were two charging 
points on Alma Road in a residents parking area at nil cost. However, the location 
would lead to dispute as residents wanted access to their parking space, which was 
not an electrical vehicle. Moreover, the infrastructure of the roads did not lend to easy 
access of cables. 
 
The Vice Chairman said an ongoing project was being undertaken by the 
Infrastructure team regarding electric car charging points and could be brought to a 
future meeting. Councillor Davey said there was a review of electric charging points in 
the Parking Strategy being considered at the upcoming Cabinet meeting. 

12



 
John Webb wanted Members to note that an upcoming high-density planning 
application on Hatch Lane, which had 42 proposed car parking spaces, none of which 
were likely to be electric charging points. This would add more cars and congestion in 
the borough.  
 
YOUTH SERVICES UPDATE  
 
Danny Gomm, Youth Service Manager, said since the initial lockdown in March 2020, 
open access youth sessions were closed and in recent months and the Youth Workers 
had been redeployed to support the esteem project. 
 
The esteem project, which was a targeted group for young people aged between 8 
and 18 years old with low self-esteem, restarted in-person in September 2020 until the 
second lockdown and had then continued virtually. 
 
One-to-one support for young people has continued virtually since March 2020, as 
well as visiting schools. Support was provided around substance misuse, exploitation, 
online safety, low mental health and support for children who have a 
substance misusing parents. Low-level mental health support was also provided.  
 
Return home interviews continued to be carried out for young people who had been 
reported missing, either virtually or in person. There was a correlation between young 
people who were missing regularly and victims of exploitation. The youth service 
determined what the young person did whilst they were missing, who they met with 
and if were they pushed to go missing. 
 
Free virtual drop-in workshops to educate parents and carers continued, which 
included topics such as substance misuse, child sex exploitation and online safety. 
Two live virtual Q&A sessions were to take place on 8 December 2020, where queries 
by the audience on online safety and substance misuse would be answered by social 
workers. 
 
The youth service worked with the TVP and Community Wardens and had meetings 
regarding sexual and criminal exploitation, where information was shared, methods to 
disrupt activities were devised and support for victims was planned. 
 
Elaine Keating, Youth Engagement Officer, was responsible for the Girls’ Policy 
Forum, which was created to empower young girls and was to be promoted in the next 
few weeks in schools. Cabinet was due to receive a report in December 2020 to set 
up a Youth Council so that young people could be involved in council meetings. 
 
The Young Health Champions was also being set up, to train 12 young people in 
years 11 and 12 to become peer educators in anything linked to health. The deadline 
was the first week of December 2020.  
 
Councillor Price asked what the major challenges were within the youth services and 
changes needed to deliver in future. Danny Gomm said the digital world was the 
biggest concern, as it exposed young people to exploitation. There was an ignorance 
on how to stay safe online and young people were at risk of being groomed to share 
sexual images, and then blackmailed to share images. Sharing sexualised images 
amongst young people was now becoming the norm, therefore it was difficult to break 
the cycle. One-to-one sessions were deployed in Trevelyan and Dedworth Middle 

13



Schools to educate young people. Substance misuse was also a challenge. Ideally, 
working with the TVP and community wardens and attending parks and other spaces 
that young people spent their time in the evenings would be beneficial.  
 
Councillor Tisi asked for the details of the Girls’ Policy to be shared and asked why 
young people were not using youth services as much. The Forum was informed that 
connections could be made on social media rather than in a physical space, therefore 
there was reduced youth engagement. Feedback from young people suggested that 
they wanted to meet recreationally in a space that was not regulated by adults, such 
as schools, at home or at youth centres.  
 
ACTION: Danny Gomm to share details for the Girl’s Policy Forum with 
Councillor Tisi. 
 
WINDSOR TOWN COUNCIL UPDATE  
 
Councillor Cannon, Vice Chairman of the Community Governance Review (CGR) 
Working Group, said the first stage of consultation was completed with 69 responses. 
4 responses were received from parish councils, 6 from local organisations and a few 
responses from businesses, the Windsor Town Council (WTC) steering committee 
representatives and local political parties. Redacted responses were to be published 
on the borough’s website by the end of November 2020. There would be a greater 
response rate in the second stage of the consultation. 
 
The CGR Working Group was tasked to decide what to put forward for a second stage 
of the consultation, which would be sent to all households that would be impacted in 
future by the proposed WTC. The Working Group was to decide the area to be 
included in the WTC, boundaries, wards, naming of the communities and the number 
of Councillors to be elected and timings of the elections. The physical and legal power 
transfer, asset transfer, constitutional approach and the calculation of the precept was 
also to be decided.  
 
There was an option to have the elections in 2022 for a one-year period and the 
consequential effects were to be reviewed by the Working Group. A draft 
recommendation was to be compiled in January 2021, ready for Full Council on 23 
February 2021. The final recommendation would be made in late July 2021, to be 
decided at Full Council. 
 
John Webb commented that he understood the CGR Working Group had only looked 
at one example of a CGR by another council, and in this case the CGR had concluded 
not to set up a town or parish council. He therefore asked why only one area review 
was chosen. Councillor Cannon said several examples were presented by the officers, 
and this was compliant to the guidelines. John Webb was advised to contact Suzanne 
Martin, Electoral & Information Governance Services Manager, if there was a concern 
regarding the process.  
 
Ed Wilson said 69 responses represented less than 0.1% of those affected by a 
potential WTC and asked for a breakdown of the data that showed how many 
residents from unparished areas responded to the consultation.  
 
Councillor Davies said the legal officer advised that the response rate was enough 
and was a sound database and that all respondents would be contacted directly for 
the second stage of the consultation. Councillor Cannon said the second stage of the 

14



consultation would likely have a higher response rate and the first stage of the 
consultation was only to review the appetite for a WTC and not to decide if a WTC 
should be formed.  
 
Richard Endacott asked for the comparison of response rates from other consultations 
open at the same time as the WTC consultation to be shared.  
 
ACTION: Members of the CGR Working Group to request legal advice on the 
robustness of 69 responses for the stage one of the WTC consultation.  
 
ACTION: The comparison of response rates from other consultations open at 
the same time as the WTC consultation to be shared.  
 
WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Ed Wilson suggested the Electric Vehicle Charging Points and the impact of Housing 
of Multiple Occupations to be added to the Work Programme. 
 
The Vice Chairman said residents were welcome to write to the Forum and suggest 
items. The Work Programme was to be taken offline. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 6.15 pm, finished at 9.30 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Windsor Town Forum Meeting- Wednesday 27th January 21 @6.15pm 

 All reports are from the 18/11/2020 to 18/01/2021.  

Just to clarify that for police recording purposes a residential burglary does include out buildings i.e 

garages and sheds.   

Finally at the end of each line is the figure for the corresponding time period last year and the 

number of reports received by the police.    

   

Figures 

Residential Burglary 

Windsor Central 4 reported with no suspects to date. 2019/2020(3 reports)  

Windsor East- 5 reported with no suspects to date. 2019/2020(13 reports)  

Windsor West- 5 reported with 3 having a suspect/suspects. 2019/2020(19 reports)  

 

Theft from Motor Vehicle  

Windsor Central - 17 reported with 5 having the same suspect. 2019/2020( 29 reports)  

Windsor East- 14 reported with no suspects to date. 2019/2020( 11 reports) 

Windsor West- 24 reported with 6 having the same suspect. 2019/2020( 40 reports)  

It is the same suspect for all these offences in both areas who was charged and remanded. He was 

sentenced to 2 weeks in prison and fined.  

This is a short update regarding how property, and what property was stolen from the 17 reported 

offences in Windsor Central this term.   

5 vehicles having windows broken. 6 aggrieved admitting to leaving their vehicles insecure. 3 

aggrieved unsure how someone has got into their vehicle. From these 14 thefts, tools, clothing, 

sunglasses, small change and electrical equipment, mainly laptops were stolen.  

1 catalytic convertor stolen, 1 set of headlights stolen and 1 number plate stolen.  

 

Business Burglary  

Windsor Central- 4 reported with 1 having a suspect. 2019/2020( 7 reported)  

Windsor East- 3 reported with no suspects to date. 2019/2020(6 reported)  

Windsor West- 6reported with 2 having a suspect. 2019/2020(1 reported) 

17

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



21/12/2020 

WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE WINDSOR TOWN FORUM 
 
24 March 2021 

ITEM Responsible Officer/Organisation 

Town Manager Update 
 

Paul Roach, Windsor Town Manager 

Thames Valley Police Update 
 

Inspector Tracey Croucher 

COVID-19 Update 
 

David Scott, Head of Communities  

Windsor Town Council Update 
 

CGR Working Group 

Work Programme  
 

Clerk 

 
26 May 2021 

ITEM Responsible Officer/Organisation 

Town Manager Update 
 

Paul Roach, Windsor Town Manager 

Thames Valley Police Update 
 

Inspector Tracey Croucher 

COVID-19 Update 
 

David Scott, Head of Communities 

Windsor Town Council Update 
 

CGR Working Group 

Work Programme  
 

Clerk 

 
ITEMS SUGGESTED BUT NOT YET PROGRAMMED 

ITEM Responsible Officer/Organisation 

Windsor & Eton Town Partnership  
 

Windsor Chamber of Commerce and 
Windsor & Eton Town Partnership  
representatives 

Current Consultations 
 

 

Update from LEGOLAND and Royal Windsor Racecourse  
 

LEGOLAND and Royal Windsor 
Racecourse representative 

Requested by Cllr Haseler at the Infrastructure O&S Panel: 
CCTV System Review - Locations, operation, effectiveness 
& future proposals 
 

Councillor Cannon 
Paul Roach, Windsor Town Manager 
David Scott, Head of Communities 

Clewer and Dedworth Pilot/RBWM Community Asset 
Project/ Abri - Community Initiatives and Investment Zones  
 

 

Tourism and policing post COVID-19 
 

 

Electric Charging Points Tim Golabek, Service Lead – Transport 
and Infrastructure 

 

Thames Valley Police and Community Wardens Update 

 

Inspector Tracey Croucher and 
Community Warden representative 

Housing of Multiple Occupations Impact 

 

 

Cycle Action Group (CAG) Tranche Funding Update CAG representatives 

19

Agenda Item 9



21/12/2020 

 

Community Wardens update 

 

 

Parking Strategy Update 

 

Simon Dale, Head of Infrastructure – 
Commissioning  

 
 

 

20


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES
	6 Thames Valley Police Update
	9 Work Programme

